
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2013

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair 
Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair
Jane Raybould
Roma Amundson

Commissioners Absent: Deb Schorr

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on October 16, 2013.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:32 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE STAFF MEETING MINUTES OF OCTOBER 8,
2013

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded approval of the Staff Meeting
minutes of October 8, 2013.  Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye. 
Raybould and Schorr were absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-0.

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

None were stated.

 3 BOARD OF CORRECTIONS - Mike Thurber, Corrections Director

Separate minutes.

Raybould arrived at the meeting at 8:34 a.m.

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



 4 CONTRACT WITH TALX CORPORATION FOR EMPLOYMENT
VERIFICATION FOR CHILD SUPPORT DIVISION - Brittany Behrens
and Sam Cooper, Deputy County Attorneys

Brittany Behrens and Sam Cooper, Deputy County Attorneys, discussed a proposed
contract with TALX Corporation on behalf of the Lancaster County Attorney’s Child
Support Division, for automated access to certain employment and income data. 
Cooper noted there will be no cost to the County.  Behrens said, like many of the
services that are provided at no cost, TALX will not agree to the County’s standard
indemnification and state of legal jurisdiction provisions.  TALX will not incur liability in
any circumstance because the liability limitation provision limits their liability to the fee
paid for the service.  She said she and Cooper have discussed the potential risk of use
of the service and feel the only situation that could present problems is if inaccurate
information is conveyed to the County.  That situation could be remedied so there
would be no damages to the individual.

Raybould asked whether the County Attorney’s Office does spot checking to verify the
accuracy of the information.  Cooper said they have a few methods to try to
corroborate information. 

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. 2013 County Government Day (November 6, 2013)

Amundson agreed to meet with the students that are elected to the office of County
Commissioner.

B. Reappointment of Commissioner Hudkins to the District Energy
Corporation (DEC)

The Board scheduled the reappointment on the October 22, 2013 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.

C. Letter to the Lancaster County Agricultural Society Board of Directors

Copies of the letter were disseminated (Exhibit A).

MOTION: Amundson moved and Smoyer seconded to authorize signature by the
Chair.  Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



D. Claim for Review, Payment Voucher (PV) No. PV416634 in the
Amount of $122.66 to Robert Hays, Chief Deputy Public Defender. 
Claim is Beyond the 90 Day Time Period.

It was noted additional information regarding the claim had been provided to the
County Clerk’s Office.

MOTION: Raybould moved and Amundson seconded to handle the claim through
the regular claims process.  Amundson, Raybould, Smoyer and Hudkins
voted aye.  Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Hudkins noted the frequency of claims and suggested the Board revisit the Travel
Policy.

 5 TAX MODERNIZATION COMMITTEE TESTIMONY - Gordon Kissel
and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates (Legislative Consultants)

Copies of the proposed testimony were disseminated (Exhibit B).  There was
consensus to add a signature page, with signature by all of the Commissioners.

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, said he believes the testimony provides the type of
information the Tax Modernization Committee is seeking and will be very well received. 
He said the structure the Committee has followed has been to allow three hours for
testimony, with one hour allowed for each of three topics: 1) Property tax; 2) Sales
tax; and 3) Income tax.  Kohout said he anticipates, based on questions at other
hearings, the Committee will ask what the County did in response to the reduction in
state aid.  He said a question could also come up regarding the County’s
recommendation to expand Medicaid, citing the expenditure of more than $2,000,000
per year for General Assistance (GA) medical costs (see Item 1c, Maximize the Use of
Federal Funding through Medicaid Expansion).

There was general consensus to have the Chair present the testimony at the
Committee’s public hearing on October 18th with the other Board members present for
support.  Raybould said she advocates having more than one commissioner provide
portions of the testimony for impact.  Kohout felt there will be a large number of
individuals wishing to testify and said it would better to have one testifier.

Raybould suggested revision of the second bullet point to indicate the $3,000,000 loss
of revenue to the County from the State’s elimination of jail reimbursement is on an
annual basis. 

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

E. City-County Common Meeting Agenda Items and Starting Time
(November 5, 2013)

Updates on the 2040 Solid Waste Task Force and Planning matters were suggested as
agenda items.  

There was also consensus to move the meeting time to 9:00 a.m.  NOTE: One of the
City Council members had requested a later meeting time.

F. Appointment of John Watson and William (Russ) Bell to the Pension
Review Committee (PRC)

The Board scheduled the appointments on the October 22, 2013 County Board of
Commissioners Meeting agenda.

G. Computers for Juvenile Probation

Behrens said Shawn Eatherton, Buffalo County Attorney, has taken the position that
counties do not have to supply data and word processing hardware and software to
Juvenile Probation.  She said the language in question is contained in Nebraska
Revised Statute §29-2259(5) and said she has requested the legislative history.  Kerry
Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, noted questions were raised when the law was
passed in 1999 and said the language may have been specific to the State’s AS400
System.  

 6 DRIVEWAY REQUEST FROM JAKEB MRSNY (70TH STREET AND
WAVERLY ROAD) - Jakeb Mrsny; Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor

Ken Schroeder, County Surveyor, disseminated information regarding Jakeb Mrsny’s
request for an accessory driveway (Exhibit C).  He said the subdivision plat restricts
Mrsny’s lot, shown as Lot 1, to the existing access. 

Jakeb Mrsny, 12100 North 70th Street, said he uses diesel fuel for his furnace and must
run a hose through his house to access the fill tank located on the back side of the
house. He also has plans to put a building on the north side of his lot.  An accessory
driveway would provide access to both. 

Behrens said there is a jurisdictional issue.  She explained the Board has the authority
to advise and direct the Engineering Department to authorize the additional driveway
but doesn’t have any jurisdiction over the final plat.  The lot is located within the City’s
three-mile zoning jurisdiction and the access and the use of the access would be in
violation of the conditions of the City’s final plat.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



Amundson asked Mrsny whether he was provided a copy of the covenants when he
purchased the property indicating the lot was restricted to one access.  Mrsny said he
was.  Schroeder said the plat and deed were recorded on April 6th and April 24th,
respectively, so the conditions were in place when the lot was purchased.

Raybould asked Schroeder whether there are any site distance issues with an
additional driveway.  Schroeder said no, it is a gradual slope to the north.  He said
secondary driveways are generally allowed if there is a physical feature, such as a
drainage way, that divides the lot.  Schroder said other options would be to meander
the driveway through the property or move the existing driveway. 

MOTION: Raybould moved and Smoyer seconded to grant conditional approval of
the request from Jakeb Mrsny for an secondary driveway.  Smoyer,
Raybould, Amundson and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was absent from
voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Amundson exited the meeting at 10:08 a.m.

 7 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER (CMHC) TRANSITION
UPDATE - Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer; Ron
Sorensen, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director

Ron Sorensen, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Executive Director, said
discussions with Lutheran Family Services (LFS) regarding the transition of services
continue.  NOTE: LFS will be taking over core services (outpatient counseling, day
treatment, community support and medication management) from CMHC.  He said LFS
has not made a decision on whether to continue the Sexual Trauma/Offence Program
(STOP) or University of Nebraska-Lincoln (UNL) externs.  Sorensen noted there have
been significant changes in the Medicaid licensing requirements that will require LFS to
have beds available for day treatment and said LFS may approach the County about
having access to beds at the Crisis Center.

Amundson returned to the meeting at 10:10 a.m.

Sorensen said he has been working with Records and Information Management to
move paper records out of the facility to storage.  C. J. Johnson, Region V Systems
Administrator, appeared and said there will need to be an audit on activity since July 1,
2013.  

Sorensen also reported that CenterPointe will take over the Crisis Line responsibilities
on November 1st. 

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, reported that CenterPointe had
asked to have some painting done at the Midtown Center and said Don Killeen, County
Property Manager, directed them to get three bids.  She said the lowest bid was
$5,000 and the bill will come to the County.  NOTE: The other bid amounts were
$11,538 and $14,100. 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to approve the bill for painting
services.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Raybould asked whether LFS has made offers of employment to the current staff. 
Sorensen said they have not.

Johnson gave an update on the Request for Proposal (RFP) to take over psychiatric
residential rehabilitation services.  He said the Evaluation Team will meet on October
21st and will make their recommendation to the Behavioral Health Advisory Committee
(BHAC) on October 23rd and Region V Governing Board on November 4th.  Johnson
asked whether the Board would like to be informed of the recommendation prior to
Region V Governing Board’s meeting.  Board members indicated they would and an
update was scheduled on the October 24th County Board Staff Meeting agenda. 

Copies of the agreement between Region V Systems, Lancaster County and LFS for the
purpose of defining the transition of certain behavioral and mental health services to
be provided by LFS to individuals currently under the care of the County, as well as the
funding responsibilities of Region V, the County and LFS as it relates to such services
were disseminated (Exhibit D).

Johnson said the contract does not mention purchases that were made, such as the 20
tower computers purchased by the Electronic Behavioral Health Information Network
(eBHIN) for CMHC.  He said LFS prefers thin computers and has talked about giving
the tower computers to the County and having the County provide funding to purchase
thin computers.  Johnson asked whether that is the kind of expenditure Region V and
the County want to fund.  Thorpe explained that LFS operates in a thin client
environment and said the purchase cost is comparable to having Information Services
(IS) put new hard drives in the existing computers. 

Hudkins noted the County has a need for computers for juvenile probation officers. 
Johnson explained the eBHIN computers have to be used by agencies within the
Region V network.  

Johnson questioned whether there should be a pre-purchase provision in the contract.  
Behrens said the contract lists certain things that are allowable expenditures and
computers are not one of them.  Those items came directly from LFS’s budget. 

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



Raybould suggested an exhibit of anticipated transition costs be attached to the
agreement.  Behrens said she has received four exhibits from LFS that were based on
an $800,000 budget, which is far less than what was allocated.  NOTE: Region V and
the County have agreed to reimburse LFS up to $100,000 and $450,000, respectively,
for transition costs.  She added that LFS has agreed to the contract, as it is drafted. 
Behrens said she can contact LFS and ask if computers are something they would like
included as a reimbursable expense.

Johnson noted the contract stipulates that Region V will reimburse LFS for transition
expenses in the amount of $100,000 prior to LFS making any request(s) for
reimbursement from the County and suggested that reimbursement on the percentage
of commitment would be more appropriate.  Eagan pointed out that Region V pledged
transition monies first.  Johnson said he had pledged funds in case the County did not
so that LFS could move forward with transition. 

Johnson also noted there is no provision should LFS say it is unable to perform the
services.  Behrens said the contract does not include reimbursement in total because it
is refers to duties and responsibilities and it is likely those services will have been
provided.  She said if tangible items, such as computers, are included the contract
could address ownership.

 8 OLD JAIL REUSE PLAN  - Don Killeen, County Property Manager; John
Kay, Sinclair Hille & Associates Inc.; Dan Spiry, BVH Architects

John Kay, Sinclair Hille & Associates Inc., disseminated documents related to the
Lancaster County Adult Detention Facility Reuse Study: 1) Project background, time
line and narrative description of the concept plan diagrams; 2) Phasing sequence and
construction costs; and 3) Concept plan diagrams (Exhibit E).  He noted the study
examined the projected space needs of 13 County departments anticipated for the
next ten years.  He noted they were also asked to study the third structural infill,
options for reuse without the infill, and parking maneuverability and revised plans. 
Kay said two key elements were the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Building
(2201 South 17th Street) and the Alfred Benesh & Company Building (825 J Street).  He
said Don Killeen, County Property Manager, has indicated there is a possibility the
Crisis Center may remain in the CMHC Building for a longer period of time than
originally anticipated.  There are also indications that Benesh is willing to shorten its
lease, which would free up that building.

Dan Spiry, BVH Architects, said the Crisis Center could be located in the Benesh
Building, instead of the former Adult Detention Facility.  Hudkins said the former Adult
Detention Facility is already “hardened” and felt that would be a better location.  Spiry
said they recognize that “hardening” of the building is an issue but its size is a great fit
for the Crisis Center and it is a little more discreet.   

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



Spiry presented the revised concept plan diagrams (see Exhibit E).  Plans for the
ground level haven’t changed since the concept plan was presented to the Board in
July.  Adult Probation and the County Attorney’s Child Support Division would be
located on the first floor.  The County Attorney, Clerk of the District Court, future
County Court courtrooms and jury rooms, and the prisoner holding area for County
Court would be located on the second floor.  There would also be a secure sidewalk
link.  This is a change from the concept plan in July, which showed two District Court
Courtrooms.  He said the District Court felt it would be better to have one District
Court courtroom co-located with the other District Court courtrooms on the third floor
of the Justice and Law Enforcement Center.  Mechanical, light storage and the prisoner
holding area for District Court, with an open mezzanine between the two prisoner
holding areas, would be located on the third floor.  Juvenile Court courtrooms and
Juvenile Probation would be located on the fourth floor of the Justice and Law
Enforcement Center.  Spiry said everything fits with the Crisis Center located in the
Benesh Building.  

Killeen said they originally had looked at locating the County Attorney in the Benesh
Building but Joe Kelly, County Attorney, made it clear they really need to be in close
proximity to the Courts.  He said Adult Probation has also stated it is their preference
not to be located across the street because of the amount of files that would have to
be moved back and forth. 

Hudkins asked whether the extra space on the third floor could be used for the Crisis
Center.  Scott Etherton, Crisis Center Director, appeared and said it would require
more staffing because of the separation of the bedrooms.

Hudkins asked Etherton what he feels the best location for the Crisis Center would be. 
Etherton said it would be better to be in an area that is accessible for visitors and
medical transport.  He also said the Crisis Center also has the Lincoln Police
Department (LPD) respond to security needs on an average of three times a month.

Killeen said there are three components to consider: 1) Adult Probation; 2) County
Attorney; and 3) Crisis Center.  He said only two will fit in the existing space and it is a
matter of deciding which will one will work best across the street.
 
Smoyer suggested that Etherton walk through the Benesh Building and assess whether 
it would meet his department’s needs.

Gene Cotter, Chief Probation Officer, Adult Probation, appeared and said his
department works closely with the courts and law enforcement and feels the former
Adult Detention Facility would be a better fit.  He also expressed concern about noise
and accessibility during the construction phase. 

Page 8 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



Hudkins asked Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff, whether he foresees any
complications from having two different prisoner holding pods.  Wagner said he does
not, but Corrections will staff that area.

Troy Hawk, Clerk of the District Court, appeared and said his department serves both 
the District and Juvenile Courts and needs to be located in close proximity to them as
there is a great deal of paperwork moving back and forth.  He suggested the space on
the fourth floor of the Justice and Law Enforcement Center that is shown in the plans
for Juvenile Probation.

 9 PROBATION BOARDING CONTRACT UPDATE -  Brittany Behrens,
Deputy County Attorney; Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC)
Director

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said the County has not received a
response to the letter the County sent to State Probation Administration, dated
October 8, 2013.  However, several county officials received copies of a letter the
Administrative Office of the Courts and Probation sent to the Judges, dated October
10, 2013 (Exhibit F).  She said the letter is related to issues specific to Legislative Bill
(LB) 561, which changed provisions and transferred responsibilities regarding the
juvenile justice system, and advises the Judges of the impasse in contract negotiations
as it relates to detention services.  Behrens said the County Attorney’s advice is still to
try to address the issues of who is responsible for medical, transport and pre-
disposition youth who have violated conditions of release and have been returned to
detention legislatively.

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, said YSC continues to accept
those youth and will bill for medical costs.  She added they will track what costs are
not reimbursed.

Behrens noted the sixth paragraph of the letter states: Lancaster County has indicated
they may not be able to accept additional youth at their detention center pending
resolution of this issue.  She said she does not believe that has ever been the County’s
position.  She also pointed out language in the second paragraph which states: It
appears that Lancaster County is representing other counties in negotiating the terms
of this agreement.  Behrens said Lancaster County is not attempting to represent any
interest, other than Lancaster County, but said other counties’ interests are very
similar to ours.  She added that Douglas and Sarpy Counties, have submitted drafts of
detention services contracts to State Probation Administration that are different from
ours and have received no response.  Behrens said Corey Steel, Deputy Administrator
for State Probation Administration, has agreed to meet with Douglas, Lancaster and
Sarpy County juvenile detention facility directors and attorneys tomorrow to discuss

Page 9 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



the detention services contract but said she does not foresee there will be any
resolution.  Raybould asked whether it would be appropriate to have a state senator
present to hear the concerns.  Behrens said concerns can be conveyed to state
senators but said this is probably not the appropriate forum to do that.

There was consensus to schedule discussion with Juvenile Court Presiding Judge
Reggie Ryder.

Smoyer said he plans to meet with Senator Mello and will share Lancaster County’s
concerns.

10 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

11 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

12 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. 2013 County Government Day (November 6, 2013)
B. Reappointment of Commissioner Hudkins to the District Energy

Corporation (DEC)
C. Letter to the Lancaster County Agricultural Society Board of Directors
D. Claim for Review, Payment Voucher (PV) No. PV416634 in the

Amount of $122.66 to Robert Hays, Chief Deputy Public Defender. 
Claim is Beyond the 90 Day Time Period.

E. City-County Common Meeting Agenda Items and Starting Time
(November 5, 2013)

F. Appointment of John Watson and William (Russ) Bell to the Pension
Review Committee (PRC)

G. Computers for Juvenile Probation

Items A-G were moved forward on the agenda.

H. Agenda Items for Tri-County Meeting with Douglas and Sarpy County
Boards (November 18, 2013)

The following topics were suggested: 1) Legislative Bill (LB) 561, which changed
provisions and transferred responsibilities regarding the juvenile justice system; 2)
Truancy; and 3) Update on the Lincoln-Lancaster County Consolidation Task Force. 

Page 10 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



I. Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) Grant
Update

Thorpe noted the Board had authorized Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director,
to apply for the PATH grant.  She has since learned that Lutheran Family Services
(LFS) intends to apply for the grant.  Thorpe suggested that the County withdraw its
grant application and submit a letter supporting LFS’s application (see Exhibit G for
letter draft).

MOTION: Amundson moved and Smoyer seconded to send a letter supporting
Lutheran Family Services’ (LFS’) grant application, with signature by the
Chair.  Amundson, Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr
was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

13 PENDING

There were no pending items.

14 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Public Building Commission (PBC) - Hudkins, Raybould

Hudkins said they approved leasing the Old Jail Facility from the County.

B. Board of Health - Amundson

Amundson said they discussed amendments to the county health resolutions, results of
a community health challenge and the use of e-cigarettes.

C. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - Hudkins

Hudkins said they discussed whether to have professional, rather than in-house,
management of the public golf courses.

D. Human Services Joint Budget Committee (JBC) 

Meeting was cancelled.

E. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Budget Monitoring
Committee - Smoyer

Smoyer said the meeting was routine in nature.

Page 11 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013



F. Meeting with Marvin Krout, Planning Director; and Sara Hartzell,
Planner - Hudkins, Smoyer

Hudkins said Planning wants to draft a new comprehensive plan for J Street, south of
the Haymarket area.  He said the Planning Department has also been involved in
discussions with the Lincoln Airport Authority about reconfiguration of the entrance
from Highway 34.  

15 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

16 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:04
p.m.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 12 BOC/STAFF/10/17/2013
































































